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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members

Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited, 
(“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 
on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the standalone Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects 
of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph below, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss and total comprehensive 
loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

i. As depicted in Note 9 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, total trade receivables amounting to  
` 83,260.29 lakhs includes related party receivables amounting to ` 72,547.19 lakhs as at March 31, 2020. During 
the year, based on internal evaluation, the management has provided for additional loss allowance amounting 
to ` 1,576.24 lakhs. There have been substantial delays in receipt from customers and subsequent receipts have 
not been significant. In view of the above, we are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence and 
are unable to comment on the adequacy of loss provision, valuation and recoverability of balance outstanding 
amounting to ` 81,527.38 lakhs (net of provision).

ii. As depicted in Note 16 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, during the year, the Company has raised term 
loan from a bank amounting to ̀  22,500 lakhs which has not been utilized for the purpose for which it was sanctioned 
and consequently used in the normal course of business. In the absence of any clarity on non-compliance with 
the terms and conditions of sanction as well as breach of covenants, we are unable to comment on the impact of 
aforesaid utilization and non-compliances on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements” section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified 
opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to note no 47 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements which describes management’s 
assessment of the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on the operations and standalone Ind AS financial statements of 
the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter Auditor’s Response
1. Revenue Recognition:

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosures of revenue 
and other related balances in view of 
adoption of Ind AS 115 “ Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers” (new revenue 
accounting standard)

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Company’s process to identify the impact of adoption 
of the new revenue accounting standard.

Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating 
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:

   Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation 
of the new revenue accounting standard.

   Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts and tested 
the operating effectiveness of the internal control, relating 
to identification of the distinct performance obligations and 
determination of transaction price.

We carried out a combination of procedures involving enquiry and 
observation, re-performance and inspection of evidence in respect 
of operation of these controls.

   Tested the relevant information technology system’s access 
and change management controls relating to contracts and 
related information used in recording and disclosing revenue in 
accordance with the new revenue accounting standard.

   Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts and performed 
the following procedures:

   Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance 
obligations in these contracts.

   Compared these performance obligations with that identified 
and recorded by the Company.

   Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of 
revenues.
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Key audit matter Auditor’s Response
2. Disclosure of related party transactions:

Due to high volume of business transactions with 
related parties during the year ended March 31, 
2020, the matter pertaining to completeness of 
disclosures of related party transactions at arm’s 
length price is considered as key audit matter.

Principal Audit Procedures

  Assessed the procedures adopted by the management in 

order to establish arm’s length price.

  Obtaining an understanding of the Company’s procedures 

in identification of related parties and process followed for 

ensuring completeness of accounting and disclosures of 

related party transactions and balances.

  Reading the statutory records and books of records to 

identify related party transactions and audit committee 

approvals for related party transactions.

  Verification of balance confirmations received from related 

parties and testing the transaction amounts and closing 

balances.
3. Accounting for Leases under Ind AS 116:

As described in Note 1 (Accounting policies, 
judgements and estimates), Ind AS 116 
‘Leases’ is effective for the accounting period 
commencing 1 April 2019. 

Ind AS 116 had a significant impact on the 
reported assets, liabilities and the income 
statement of the Company. 

The impact of the Ind AS 116 transition is reliant 
upon a number of key estimates, primarily 
determining the appropriate discount rates. 

Additionally, there is a risk that the lease data 
which is used in the calculation of Ind AS 116 
transition calculation is incomplete or inaccurate.

Principal Audit Procedures

1)      Assessing the design and implementation of the key controls 

relating to the determination of the Ind AS 116 transition 

impact disclosure. 

2)  Our procedures to assess management’s key modelling 

estimates and the completeness/ accuracy of the underlying 

lease data included: 

     – assessing the discount rates used to calculate the lease 

obligation, 

     – assessing the accuracy of the lease data by testing the 

lease data captured by management for a sample of leases 

through the inspection of lease documentation; and 

        – testing the completeness of the lease data by reconciling 

the Company’s existing lease commitments to the lease 

data used in the Ind AS 116 model. 

3)    Evaluating whether the disclosures included in the notes to 

the financial statements are in conformity with the applicable 

standard.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind 
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, total comprehensive income/ (loss), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, Board of directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless Board of directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management.

  Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company 
to express an opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statments.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone Ind 
AS financial statments may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

 a. We have sought and except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion paragraph above, obtained 
all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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 b. Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, proper books 
of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books.

 c. The company does not have any branches. Hence, the provisions of section 143(3)(c) is not applicable.

 d. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account.

 e. Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid 
standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with relevant rule issued there under to the extent applicable to the company.

 f. The matters described in basis of qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion may have adverse effects 
on the functioning of the company.

 g. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2020, taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 h. The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated 
in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph above.

 i.  With respect to the adequacy of Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the 
operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting.

 j. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with requirement of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the 
Act.

 k. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanation given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone Ind 
AS financial statements.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses.

  iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 103429W

CA Atul Jain 
Partner

Membership No. 037097
UDIN: 20037097AAAABD5518

Mumbai
Date: July 31, 2020
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to 
the Members of Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited of even date)

i. In respect of Company’s Property, plant and Equipment:

 a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, plant and Equipment.

 b. The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, plant and Equipment in a 
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, plant and Equipment were physically verified by 
the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 c.  The Company did not have any immovable property of freehold or leasehold land and building as at March 31, 
2020. Therefore paragraph 3(i) (c) of Order is not applicable.

ii. The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at regular intervals during the year. In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is maintaining proper records 
of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification between physical stocks and the book records were not 
material having regard to the size of the operations of the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans or made any 
investments, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said order are not applicable to the company.

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 
31, 2020. Therefore, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost records has 
not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business 
activities carried out by the Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, 
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or borrowings from banks or debenture holders. The Company has not taken any loans from 
Government or any Financial Institution.

ix. Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for 
the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer.

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during 
the year.
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xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standard.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year. Therefore, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with him. Therefore, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 103429W

CA Atul Jain 
Partner

Membership No. 037097
UDIN: 20037097AAAABD5518

Mumbai
Date: July 31, 2020



96

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 2(i) under the “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to 
the Members of Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind AS 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 103429W

CA Atul Jain 
Partner

Membership No. 037097
UDIN: 20037097AAAABD5518

Mumbai
Date: July 31, 2020
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(` in Lakh)
Particulars Note As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  50,965.49  41,101.87 
Right of use assets 35  32,222.77  -   
Capital work in progress  573.55  5,517.28 
Intangible assets 3  216.42  122.08 
Financial assets
Investments 4  -    6,312.26 
Other financial assets 5  5,535.39  5,212.60 
Other non current assets 6  9,719.27  7,483.57 
Total non-current assets  99,232.89  65,749.66 
Current assets
Inventories 7  352.08  552.95 
Financial assets
Investments 8  -    0.70 
Trade receivables 9  81,527.38  34,982.19 
Cash and cash equivalents 10  31.10  11,708.55 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11  270.90  160.65 
Other financial assets 12  22,931.48  375.87 
Other current assets 13  593.43  1,235.06 
Assets classified as held for sale 40  -    3,626.55 
Total current assets  1,05,706.37  52,642.52 
Total assets  2,04,939.26  1,18,392.18 
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14  4,388.36  4,008.11 
Other equity 15  69,928.09  56,026.66 
Total equity  74,316.45  60,034.77 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Non current borrowings 16  34,210.73  20,752.19 
Lease Liability 17  25,979.59  -   
Other non current financial liabilities 18  55.63  90.05 
Provisions 19  650.31  408.49 
Total non-current liabilities  60,896.26  21,250.73 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Liability  10,472.98  -   
Borrowing  8,511.06  -   
Trade payables
- Micro and small enterprises 31  315.78  166.83 
- Others  29,731.79  23,499.52 
Other current financial liabilities 20  19,301.25  7,990.11 
Other current liabilities 21  1,380.95  2,046.40 
Provisions 22  12.74  719.71 
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale 40  -    2,684.11 
Total current liabilities  69,726.55  37,106.68 
Total equity and liabilities  2,04,939.26  1,18,392.18 
Notes to the Financial Statements 1-49

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

As per our report of even date attached
For GMJ & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Firm Registration No: 103429W

Atul Jain Mayur Toshniwal C P Toshniwal
Partner (Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No.: 037097 DIN : 01655776 DIN : 00036303

Place: Mumbai Samir Kedia Vimal Dhruve
Date : July 31, 2020 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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(` in Lakh)
Particulars Note Year ended  

 March 31, 2020
Year ended  

 March 31, 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 23  1,14,055.20  1,11,277.10 
Other income 24  2,002.97  561.34 
Total income  1,16,058.17  1,11,838.44 
Expenses
Cost of logistics services  69,963.47  77,354.26 
Employee benefits expense 25  8,786.99  9,770.04 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 & 35  16,593.59  4,170.10 
Finance costs 26  8,081.04  1,608.14 
Other expenses 27  9,940.89  9,297.82 
Total expenses  1,13,365.98  1,02,200.36 
Profit before exceptional items and tax  2,692.19  9,638.08 
Exceptional items (Refer note no. 41)  9,080.43  -   
Profit / (Loss) before tax  (6,388.24)  9,638.08 
Tax expense:
 (1) Current tax  -    -   
 (2) Deferred tax  -    -   
Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing operations  (6,388.24)  9,638.08 
Loss for the year from discontinued operations  -    (3,122.36)
Tax expense of discontinued operations  -    -   
Profit / (Loss) for the year from discontinued operations after tax  -    (3,122.36)
Profit / (Loss) for the year  (6,388.24)  6,515.72 
Other comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan  (127.13)  62.05 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 

profit or loss 
 -    -   

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax  (127.13)  62.05 
Total comprehensive income / (Loss) for the year  (6,515.37)  6,577.77 
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) (face value  
` 10/- each):

34

Basic (`)  (15.51)  24.06 
Diluted (`)  (15.51)  24.03 
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations) (face value 
` 10/- each):
Basic (`)  -    (7.79)
Diluted (`)  -    (7.79)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing and discontinued 
operations) (face value ` 10/- each):
Basic (`)  (15.51)  16.27 
Diluted (`)  (15.51)  16.24 
Notes to the Financial Statements 1-49

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

As per our report of even date attached
For GMJ & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Firm Registration No: 103429W

Atul Jain Mayur Toshniwal C P Toshniwal
Partner (Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No.: 037097 DIN : 01655776 DIN : 00036303

Place: Mumbai Samir Kedia Vimal Dhruve
Date : July 31, 2020 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Opening balance  4,008.11  4,005.62 
Add : Equity shares issued and alloted during the year  378.94  -   
Add : Equity shares issued under Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)  1.31  2.49 
Closing balance  4,388.36  4,008.11 

(B) OTHER EQUITY
Retained earnings
Opening balance  31,487.53  27,892.66 
Profit / (Loss) for the year  (6,388.24)  6,515.72 
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)  (127.13)  62.05 
Dividend paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax)  (604.11)  (482.90)
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve  -    (2,500.00)
Adjustment on transition to Ind AS 116- 'Leases'  (3,919.54)  -   
Closing balance  20,448.51  31,487.53 
Securities premium
Opening balance  21,563.99  21,403.32 
Add : Equity Shares issued under ESOP  44.66  84.57 
Add : Equity Shares issued on Preferential basis (Nippon)  24,782.35  -   
Add : Transfer from share options outstanding account on exercise of ESOP  40.18  76.10 
Closing balance  46,431.18  21,563.99 
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening balance  2,500.00  -   
Add: Transfer from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  -    2,500.00 
Closing balance  2,500.00  2,500.00 
Share options outstanding
Opening balance  475.14  179.44 
Add: Recognition of share based payments  113.44  371.80 
Less: Transfer to securities premium on exercise of ESOP  (40.18)  (76.10)
Closing balance  548.40  475.14 
Total other equity  69,928.09  56,026.66 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

As per our report of even date attached
For GMJ & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Firm Registration No: 103429W

Atul Jain Mayur Toshniwal C P Toshniwal
Partner (Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No.: 037097 DIN : 01655776 DIN : 00036303

Place: Mumbai Samir Kedia Vimal Dhruve
Date : July 31, 2020 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit / (loss) before tax  (6,388.24)  6,515.72 
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  16,593.59  4,511.42 
Finance costs  8,081.04  1,784.83 
Provision for doubtful debts  322.42  371.09 
Loss / (Profit) on sale / Scrap of fixed assets  229.89  (10.05)
Gain on termination of lease asset  (10.04)  -   
Provision for doubtful advances  45.00  95.11 
Investment Written off   0.70  -   
Expenses on employee stock option (ESOP)  113.44  371.80 
Exceptional items  9,080.43  -   
Interest income  (1,685.66)  (248.60)
Cash generated from operations before working capital changes  26,382.57  13,391.32 
Adjusted for:
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables  (48,121.44)  (11,537.65)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories  200.87  (552.95)
(Increase) / decrease in other financial and other assets  (584.68)  (2,635.71)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables, other liabilities and provisions  5,886.46  8,660.74 
Cash flow from operations  (16,236.22)  7,325.75 
Taxes paid  (3,104.16)  (754.90)
Net cash from operating activities  (19,340.38)  6,570.85 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets  (13,806.16)  (17,849.78)
Capital advance  868.46  (872.54)
Sale of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets  522.45  128.93 
Loans and advances given  (21,571.72)  -   
Sale of investment in Subsidiary  1.00  -   
Interest received  987.40  248.60 
Net cash used in investing activities  (32,998.57)  (18,344.79)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liability  (13,022.31)  -   
Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares under ESOP  45.97  87.06 
Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares on Preferential basis  25,161.29  -   
Dividend paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax)  (604.11)  (482.90)
Proceeds from current borrowings (net)  8,511.06  -   
Proceeds from non current borrowings  26,007.48  20,641.57 
Repayment of  non current borrowings  (50.36)  (3,180.80)
Interest paid  (5,277.27)  (731.61)
Net cash from financing activities  40,771.75  16,333.32 

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
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(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (11,567.20)  4,559.38 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  11,869.20  7,968.02 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  302.00  12,527.40 
less: Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year from discontinued 
operations 

 -    658.20 

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet  302.00  11,869.20 

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (CONTD.)

As per our report of even date attached
For GMJ & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Firm Registration No: 103429W

Atul Jain Mayur Toshniwal C P Toshniwal
Partner (Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No.: 037097 DIN : 01655776 DIN : 00036303

Place: Mumbai Samir Kedia Vimal Dhruve
Date : July 31, 2020 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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1. COMPANY OVERVIEW

 Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited (the “Company’’) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated 
on March 8, 2006. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited.

 The Company is an integrated and IT enabled end-to-end Supply Chain and Logistics Company with capabilities 
in handling Modern Warehousing, Express Logistics, Cold Chain Logistics etc. The Company mainly caters to 
corporates in Food & Beverages, Lifestyle, Consumer Durables & Electronics, Automotive & Engineering, Home 
& Furniture, Healthcare, General Merchandise, E-Commerce sectors etc. Each category has a distinct supply 
chain requirement that needs customised solutions. The Company has been a pioneer and leader in modernising 
logistics and supply chain in India by having implemented cutting-edge technology and contemporary supply 
chain management practices through implementation of global best practices, indigenised and best adapted for 
Indian conditions. The Company has its registered office at Mumbai, Maharashtra, India.

2A. REVISED INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (“IND AS”) ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

 Standards issued but not effective (based on Exposure drafts available as on date) The amendments are proposed 
to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2020.

 (A)  Issue of Ind AS 117 – Insurance Contracts Ind AS 117 supersedes Ind AS 104 Insurance contracts. It establishes 
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within 
the scope of the standard. Under the Ind AS 117 model, insurance contract liabilities will be calculated as 
the present value of future insurance cash flows with a provision for risk. Application of this standard is not 
expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

 (B)  Amendments to existing Standards Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out amendments of the following 
accounting standards:

  1.  Ind AS 103 – Business Combination

  2.   Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors

  3.  Ind AS 40 – Investment Property

 The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the new amendments issued but not yet effective.

2B. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1. Statement of Compliance

 The Standalone Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Ind AS notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other applicable laws.

2.2. Basis of Preparation and Presentation

  The Standalone Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (`), which is the Company’s functional 
currency. All financial information presented in ̀  has been rounded off to the nearest two decimals of Lakhs, unless 
otherwise stated.

 These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Ind AS under the historical cost convention on the 
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting 
period.

 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company 
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics 
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or 
disclosure purposes in these Financial Statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment 

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 ‘Share-based payment’, leasing transactions that are within 
the scope of Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, 
such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 ‘Inventories’ or value in use in Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’.

 In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to 
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

	 •	 Level	1	inputs	are	quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	assets	or	liabilities	that	the	entity	
can access at the measurement date;

	 •	 Level	2	inputs	are	inputs,	other	than	quoted	prices	included	within	Level	1,	that	are	observable	for	the	asset	or	
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

	 •	 Level	3	inputs	are	unobservable	inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability.

 The principal accounting policies are set out below.

2.3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost of 
acquisition is inclusive of purchase price, levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its 
working condition for the intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised 
as separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, 
as intended by the management.

 The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are 
incurred.

 Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Assets Useful Life
Plant and Equipments 15 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Electrical Installations 10 years
Vehicles 6 years
Computers 3 years
Leasehold Improvements Lease term

 The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 The cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital Work-In-Progress’.

2.4. Intangible Assets

 Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost and other cost incurred, which is attributable to preparing the 
asset for its intended use, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised on straight line basis over their estimated useful economic life. The estimated useful lives of 
intangible assets are as follows:

Assets Useful Life
Softwares 6 years
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 An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

 The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of amortisation of Intangible assets are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.5. Leasing

 The Company as lessee

 The Company’s lease asset primarily consist of leases for building. The Company assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether i) the contract 
involves use of an identified asset ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 
asset through the period of lease and iii) the Company has right to direct the use of the asset.

 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right- of- use asset (‘ROU”) at cost and 
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the 
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease.

 Certain lease arrangements includes the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of lease term. ROU 
assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

 The right- of- use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments  made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct cost 
less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses.

 Right- of- use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
event or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit 
(CGU) to which the asset belongs.

 The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease Liabilities are remeasured with a 
corresponding adjustment to the related   right- of- use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it 
will exercise an extension or a termination option.

 Lease liability and ROU have been separately presented in the Balance sheet and lease payment have been 
classified as financing cash flows.

 The Company as lessor

 Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of these 
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance 
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

 When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it account for its interests in the head lease and the sublease 
separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising 
from head lease.

 For operating lease, rental income is recognised on straight line basis over terms of the relevant lease.

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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2.6.  Financial Instruments

 2.6. (i)  Initial recognition

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair 
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

 2.6. (ii) Subsequent measurement

 a. Non-derivative financial instruments

  (i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

   A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.

   Effective interest method

   The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and 
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount 
on initial recognition.

  (ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

   A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

   The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments, which are classified as equity 
instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on 
its business model. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its 
business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes 
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.

  (iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

   A financial asset, which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued 
through profit or loss.

  (iv) Financial liabilities

   Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except 
for contingent consideration recognised in a business combination, which is subsequently measured at 
fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance 
sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

 b. Equity instruments

  An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs.

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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 c. Compound instruments

  The component parts of compound instruments issued by the Company are classified separately as financial 
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed 
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an 
equity instrument.

  At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest 
rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis 
using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

  The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component 
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of 
income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity 
will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity 
will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at the 
maturity date of the convertible instrument, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained 
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss upon conversion or expiration of the 
conversion option.

  Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity 
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity 
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included 
in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument 
using the effective interest method.

 2.6. (iii) Derecognition of financial instruments

  The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset.

  A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the Company’s Balance Sheet when 
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.7. Foreign Currency

 Functional currency

 The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee (‘’ `’’).

 i.  Initial recognition

  In preparing the Financial Statement of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Companies’ 
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions.

 ii. Conversion

  a.  Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange 
rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  b.  Non-monetary items, if any are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, 
are reported in Indian Rupee using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary 
items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are 
translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

 iii.  Exchange differences

  The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation / settlement of foreign currency 
monetary items as below:

  a.  Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.
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  b.  Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange 
rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.8. Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of 
the respective asset, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other 
borrowing costs are charged in the period they occur in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.9. Revenue Recognition

 Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects 
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

 Revenue recognition prescribed in five-step model:

 Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer – Contracts may be written, oral or implied by customary business 
practices, but revenue can be recognised only on those contracts that are enforceable and have commercial 
substance.

 Step 2: Identify the separate performance obligations in the contract – Performance obligations are explicitly or 
implicitly promised goods or services in a contract as well those arising from customary business practices. An 
entity needs to identify performance obligations which are distinct.

 Step 3: Determine the transaction price – The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity 
expects to be entitled. It includes variable consideration, impact of significant financing components, fair value of 
non-cash consideration and impact of consideration payable to the customer.

 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations – The standard requires allocation 
of the total contract price to the various performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling prices, 
with limited exceptions.

  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation – Revenue recognition can 
occur either over time or at a point in time. Revenue recognition for a performance obligation occurs over time only 
if it meets one of the three prescribed criteria.

 Interest Income

 For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest 
rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset.

2.10. Current versus Non-Current Classification

 An asset is considered as current when it is:

	 •	 Expected	to	be	realised	or	intended	to	be	sold	or	consumed	in	normal	operating	cycle,	or

	 •	 Expected	to	be	realised	within	twelve	months	after	the	reporting	period,	or

	 •	 Cash	or	cash	equivalent	unless	restricted	from	being	exchanged	or	used	to	settle	a	liability	for	at	least	twelve	
months after the reporting period.

 All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is considered as current when it is:

	 •	 Expected	to	be	settled	in	normal	operating	cycle,	or

	 •	 Due	to	be	settled	within	twelve	months	after	the	reporting	period,	or

	 •	 There	 is	no	unconditional	 right	 to	defer	 the	 settlement	of	 the	 liability	 for	at	 least	 twelve	months	after	 the	
reporting period.

 All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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2.11. Employee Benefits

 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

 i.  Defined Contribution Plan:

  Company’s contributions paid / payable during the year to the Superannuation Fund, ESIC, Provident Fund 
and Labour Welfare Fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 ii.  Defined Benefits Plan:

  For defined retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit 
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if 
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance 
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is 
not reclassified to profit or loss.

  Past service cost is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest 
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or 
asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

  a.  Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments 
and settlements);

  b.  Net interest expense or income; and

  c.  Re-measurement

  The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 
‘Employee benefits expense’.

  Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

  The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the 
Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of 
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to 
the plans.

  Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

  A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, performance 
incentives and similar benefits other than compensated absences in the period the related service is rendered 
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

  Liabilities recognised in respect of compensated absences are measured on the basis of actuarial valuation as 
on the balance sheet date.

  Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date.

2.12. Taxation

 Current tax

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as 
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

 The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end 
of the reporting period.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 
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tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises 
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that 
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if 
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 
be recovered.

 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities.

 Current and deferred tax for the year

 Current and deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the 
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the 
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is 
highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

2.13. Earnings Per Share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.14. Provisions, Contingent liabilities & Contingent assets

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation.

 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third 
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the 
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

 Onerous contracts

 Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting 
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

 Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
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cannot be made.

 A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.15. Impairment

 a. Financial assets

  The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets 
which are not fair valued through Statement of Profit and Loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with 
no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial 
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. 
The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

  Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the 
Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is 
computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted 
for forward-looking information.

 b. Non-financial assets

   Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment

  Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit to which the asset belongs.

  If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable 
amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

2.16. Share-based payment arrangements

 Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair 
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

 The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, 
with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of 
the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a 
corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

2.17. Business combinations

 Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a 
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values 
of the assets transferred by the Company, liabilities incurred by the Company to the former owners of the acquiree 
and the equity interests issued by the Company in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs 
are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
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 At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, 
except that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are 
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ (“Ind AS 12”) and Ind AS 19 ‘Employee 
Benefits’ (“Ind AS 19”) respectively.

 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) 
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

 In case of a bargain purchase, before recognising a gain in respect thereof, the Company determines where there 
exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. 
Thereafter, the Company reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the 
liabilities assumed and recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The 
Company then reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of 
calculating the bargain purchase.

 If the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the Company recognises it in other comprehensive income 
and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying 
reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Company recognises the gain, after 
reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve.

 When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree 
is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously 
been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss where such 
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

 Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date. 
At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount 
that would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ 
(“Ind AS 37”) and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with Ind 
AS 18 ‘Revenue’ (“Ind AS 18”).

2.18. Inventories

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted 
average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of 
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

2.19. Non-current assets held for sale

 Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through 
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of 
such asset and its sale is highly probable.

 Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed 
sale within one year from the date of classification.

 Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less 
costs to sell.

 Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale.

 Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in Balance sheet.
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2.20.Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments

 In the course of applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered 
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future periods.

 The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

 a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

  Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are 
dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives 
based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, 
depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the management.

 b. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

  Determining whether the property, plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimate in the value in 
use of cash generating units. It requires to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash 
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. When the actual cash flows 
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

 c. Provisions, liabilities and contingencies

  Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future 
outflow of funds resulting from past events that can reasonably be estimated. The timing of recognition 
requires application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to change.

  In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against 
the Company.  Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not 
recognised.

2.21. Cash Flow Statement

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.22.Investment in Subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associates

 Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are shown at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 ‘Separate 
Financial Statements’. Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is recognised as impairment 
loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss (refer policy on impairment of non-financial assets). On disposal of 
investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND  EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Leasehold 
Improve-

ments

Plant and 
Equip-
ments

Office 
Equip-
ments

Comput-
ers

Furniture 
& Fittings

Electrical 
Installa-

tions

Vehicles Total

Cost

As at April 1, 2019  2,092.83  31,340.02  1,396.34  6,038.30  5,220.08  5,697.20  389.07  52,173.84 

Additions  912.86  12,118.02  308.44  1,822.70  841.52  1,017.19  -    17,020.73 

Deletions  89.29  817.73  9.95  67.87  68.04  270.09  10.10  1,333.07 

As at March 31, 2020  2,916.40  42,640.31  1,694.83  7,793.13  5,993.56  6,444.30  378.97  67,861.50 

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 1, 2019  1,040.32  4,971.98  477.66  1,757.11  1,357.59  1,278.30  189.01  11,071.97 

Depreciation for the year  195.51  2,612.04  341.57  1,884.74  613.03  697.63  61.04  6,405.56 

Deletions  83.82  235.87  8.59  42.59  31.99  173.03  5.63  581.52 

As at March 31, 2020  1,152.01  7,348.15  810.64  3,599.26  1,938.63  1,802.90  244.42  16,896.01 

Net book value

As at March 31, 2020  1,764.39  35,292.16  884.19  4,193.87  4,054.93  4,641.40  134.55  50,965.49 

As at March 31, 2019  1,052.51  26,368.04  918.68  4,281.19  3,862.49  4,418.90  200.06  41,101.87 

(` in Lakh)

Intangible assets Computer 
Softwares

Total

Cost

As at April 1, 2019  317.11  317.11 

Additions  118.81  118.81 

Deletions  8.03  8.03 

As at March 31, 2020  427.89  427.89 

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 1, 2019  195.03  195.03 

Amortisation for the year  23.69  23.69 

Deletions  7.25  7.25 

As at March 31, 2020  211.47  211.47 

Net book value

As at March 31, 2020  216.42  216.42 

As at March 31, 2019  122.08  122.08 

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND  EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTD.)

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Leasehold 
Improve-

ments

Plant and 
Equip-
ments

Office 
Equip-
ments

Comput-
ers

Furniture 
& Fittings

Electrical 
Installa-

tions

Vehicles Total

Cost

As at April 1, 2018  2,705.17  24,573.39  1,093.77  3,048.98  5,053.37  3,672.74  520.35  40,667.77 

Additions  -    6,936.52  585.91  3,736.39  1,116.29  2,388.82  -    14,763.93 

Deletions  28.56  18.18  -    23.85  6.13  31.03  131.28  239.03 

Assets classified as held 
for sale

 583.78  151.71  283.34  723.22  943.45  333.33  -    3,018.83 

As at March 31, 2019  2,092.83  31,340.02  1,396.34  6,038.30  5,220.08  5,697.20  389.07  52,173.84 

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 1, 2018  1,107.16  3,176.51  480.79  1,427.51  1,804.51  989.12  168.53  9,154.13 

Depreciation for the year  476.08  1,881.30  168.98  833.00  307.05  405.58  78.56  4,150.55 

Deletions  14.58  8.78  -    22.59  3.96  12.17  58.08  120.16 

Assets classified as held 
for sale

 528.34  77.05  172.11  480.81  750.01  104.23  -    2,112.55 

As at March 31, 2019  1,040.32  4,971.98  477.66  1,757.11  1,357.59  1,278.30  189.01  11,071.97 

Net book value

As at March 31, 2019  1,052.51  26,368.04  918.68  4,281.19  3,862.49  4,418.90  200.06  41,101.87 

As at March 31, 2018  1,598.01  21,396.88  612.98  1,621.47  3,248.86  2,683.62  351.82  31,513.64 

(` in Lakh)

Intangible assets Computer 
Softwares

Exclusive 
Business 

Rights

Total

Cost

As at April 1, 2018  450.21  29.47  479.68 

Additions  11.97  -    11.97 

Deletions  -    -    -   

Assets classified as held for sale  145.07  -    145.07 

As at March 31, 2019  317.11  29.47  346.58 

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 1, 2018  235.45  24.47  259.92 

Amortisation for the year  14.55  5.00  19.55 

Deletions  -    -    -   

Assets classified as held for sale  54.97  -    54.97 

As at March 31, 2019  195.03  29.47  224.50 

Net book value

As at March 31, 2019  122.08  -    122.08 

As at March 31, 2018  214.76  5.00  219.76 
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4. INVESTMENTS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Non- current investments
Non- trade investment (at cost)
Unquoted
Investments in Equity
Associate 
6,69,568 (2019: 1,78,500) Equity shares  of `10 each of  Leanbox Logistics 
Solutions Private Limited

 1,942.44  899.99 

Less: Impairment in value of Investment  (1,942.44)  -   
Subsidiary
Nil (2019: 1,50,60,063) Equity shares of `10 each of  Vulcan Express Private 
Limited

 -    5,312.27 

Investments in Debentures
Others
Nil (2019: 19,833) Compulsory Convertible Debentures of ` 10 each of 
Leanbox Logistics Solutions Private Limited

 -    100.00 

 -    6,312.26 
(a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof  -    -   
(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  -    6,312.26 
(c) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  1,942.44  -   

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Non- current financial assets - others
Unsecured considered good
Security deposits  5,535.39  5,212.60 

 5,535.39  5,212.60 

6. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
MAT credit  2,155.87  2,155.87 
Advance tax  7,559.33  4,455.17 
Capital advances  4.07  872.53 

 9,719.27  7,483.57 

7. INVENTORIES

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Packing materials*  352.08  552.95 
* Valued at Weighted average basis

 352.08  552.95 

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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8. INVESTMENTS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Current investments 
Unquoted
National Saving Certificate* (under lien)  -    0.70 

 -    0.70 

*Financial assets carried at amortised cost

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Unsecured, considered good  81,527.38  34,982.19 
Trade receivables - credit impaired  1,732.91  881.72 
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss  (1,732.91)  (881.72)

 81,527.38  34,982.19 

a) Trade or Other Receivable due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any 
other person amounted to ` Nil (2018-19 ` Nil)

b) Trade or Other Receivable due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a 
director or a member amounted to ` Nil (2018-19 ` Nil)

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Balance with Bank  14.50  11,697.10 
Cash on hand  16.60  11.45 

 31.10  11,708.55 

11. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Bank deposits (under lien)  270.90  160.65 

 270.90  160.65 

12. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Other current financial assets
Inter corporate deposits  21,747.08  50.00 
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good  1,184.40  325.87 
Security deposits- credit impaired  132.19  107.19 
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits  (132.19)  (107.19)

 22,931.48  375.87 

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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13. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Insurance claim receivables  1.61  30.89 
Balances with Government authorities  198.12  496.41 
Others (includes prepaid expenses, advance to suppliers etc.)  393.70  707.76 

 593.43  1,235.06 

14. SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Number ` in Lakh Number ` in Lakh
Authorised
Equity shares of `10 each  5,00,00,000  5,000.00  5,00,00,000  5,000.00 

 5,00,00,000  5,000.00  5,00,00,000  5,000.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of `10 each fully paid up  4,38,83,598  4,388.36  4,00,81,113  4,008.11 

 4,38,83,598  4,388.36  4,00,81,113  4,008.11 

(i) Reconciliation of Number of Shares

 Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Number of Shares Number of Shares
Opening balance  4,00,81,113  4,00,56,238 
Add: Equity shares issued and alloted during the year  37,89,350  -   
Add: Allotment pursuant to exercise of stock options granted  13,135  24,875 

 4,38,83,598  4,00,81,113 

(ii)  Terms / Rights attached to equity shares 

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Holder of equity share 
is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the Company in proportion to their shareholding after distribution of all preferential amounts.

(iii)  Pursuant to the applicable laws, the Company has entered into a shareholders’ agreement with an Investor. 
According to the said Agreement and Articles of Association of the Company, the Investor is entitled to exercise, 
inter alia, the following rights so long the Investor holds not less than 10% of issued and paid up capital of the 
Company:

 1.  The right to nominate a Director on the Board of Directors of the Company;

 2.  The right to have its nominee Director on the Audit Committee as an Observer;

 3.  Right of First Refusal and Right of First Offer with respect to transfer of shares of the Company by Promoter;

 4.  Pre-emptive rights with respect to issue of new equity shares or any other convertible securities;

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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 5.  Right to approve / disapprove, inter alia, following matters which are reserved for the consent of the Investor;

  a.  entry by the Company into any transaction involving: (i) buyback (ii) capital reduction (iii) scheme 
of arrangement or compromise between the Company and its creditors and / or Shareholders (iv) 
restructuring, (v) merger, (vi) demerger, (vii) amalgamation, (viii) consolidation;

      b.  Dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the Company;

      c.  Any creation of an Encumbrance over the assets of the Company, other than in the Ordinary Course of 
Business;

(iv)  Holding company-up to December 16, 2019

Name of Shareholder As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Number of Shares Number of Shares
Equity shares
Future Enterprises Limited  100  100 
Ritvika Trading Private Limited  2,05,15,817  2,05,15,817 

(v)  More than 5 percent shareholding in the Company    

Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of the equity shares in the Company are as under:

Name of Shareholder As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Number % of holding Number % of holding
Equity shares
Ritvika Trading Private Limited  2,05,15,817 46.75  2,05,15,817  51.19 
Griffin Partners Limited  -    -    58,63,475  14.63 
Nippon Express (South Asia & Oceania) Pte. Limited  96,52,825 22.00  -    -   
L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited- L&T Emerging Businesses 
Fund

 27,91,351  6.36  27,84,372  6.95 

(vi)  Share options granted under the ESOP

 Share options granted under the ESOP carry no rights as to dividend and voting.

(vii)  As at March 31, 2020, total 2,38,565 (2019: 2,39,200) equity shares are reserved for issuance towards outstanding 
employee stock options granted. (Refer Note no. 33)

15. OTHER EQUITY

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Retained earnings  20,448.51  31,487.53 
Securities premium  46,431.18  21,563.99 
Debenture Redemption Reserve  2,500.00  2,500.00 
Employee stock option outstanding  548.40  475.14 
Total other equity  69,928.09  56,026.66 
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15.1 Description of reserves

 Securities Premium  

 This reserve is created to transfer a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on shares issued 
as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Debenture Redemption Reserve

 The Companies Act, 2013 requires that where a Company issues debentures, it shall create a Debenture Redemption 
Reserve out of the profits of the Company available for payment of dividend. The Company is required to maintain 
a Debenture Redemption Reserve of 25% of the value of debentures issued, either by a public issue or on a private 
placement basis. The amounts credited to the Debenture Redemption Reserve cannot be utilised by the Company 
except to redeem debentures.

 Employee stock option outstanding

 This reserve relates to share options granted by the Company to its employees and directors under ESOP. Further 
information about share-based payments to employees is set out in Note no. 33.

 Retained earnings

 This represents the surplus / (deficit) of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amount that can be distributed by the 
Company as dividend to its equity shareholders is determined based on the separate Financial Statements of the 
Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

16. NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Term loan

Term loan from banks*  14,443.86  1,028.17 

Non convertible debentures  19,766.87  19,724.02 

 34,210.73  20,752.19 

* Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost (Refer note no. 36)

17. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Lease liability (Refer note no. 35)  25,979.59  -   

 25,979.59  -   

18. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Non current financial liabilities
Security deposits*  55.63  90.05 

 55.63  90.05 

*Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
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19. NON CURRENT - PROVISIONS

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Gratuity (Refer note no. 37)  419.70  257.10 

Leave encashment (Refer note no. 37)  230.61  151.39 

 650.31  408.49 

20. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Current maturities of long term borrowings  13,581.83  1,030.72 

Security deposits  11.75  4.40 

Capital creditors  1,222.55  3,259.92 

Other payables  4,485.12  3,695.07 

 19,301.25  7,990.11 

21. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Statutory dues  824.54  1,222.20 

Other payables (includes advance from customers etc.)  556.41  824.20 

 1,380.95  2,046.40 

22. PROVISIONS

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Gratuity (Refer note no. 37)  7.85  7.71 

Leave encashment (Refer note no. 37)  4.89  4.75 

Provision for bonus  -    707.25 

 12.74  719.71 
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23. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
Logistics services  1,14,055.20  1,11,277.10 

 1,14,055.20  1,11,277.10 

24. OTHER INCOME

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
Interest on
-  Bank deposits  14.30  102.81 
-  Income Tax Refund  85.06  -   
-    Others (include Interest on ICD Interest ` 757.81 Lakh and Interest on 

advances ` 665.98 Lakh)
 1,586.30  133.45 

Profit on sale of fixed assets  -    10.05 
Miscellaneous income  317.31  315.03 

 2,002.97  561.34 

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus  7,820.90  8,724.32 
Contribution to provident and other funds  441.59  282.02 
Expenses on ESOP (Refer note no. 33)  113.44  371.80 
Staff welfare expenses  411.06  391.90 

 8,786.99  9,770.04 

26. FINANCE COSTS

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
Interest expenses on 
-  Lease Liabilities  3,178.25  -   
-  Others 
    - on Working Capital Limit  669.41  271.64 
    - on Debentures  2,065.40  1,025.87 
    - on Term Loans  1,743.12  159.11 
    - on others  424.86  151.52 

 8,081.04  1,608.14 
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27. OTHER EXPENSES

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Power and fuel  1,912.64  1,955.95 

Repairs and maintenance

- Building  229.73  189.49 

- Machinery  407.69  621.64 

- Others  512.81  413.23 

Insurance  166.78  161.90 

Rates and taxes  367.87  165.54 

Rent  28.54  184.78 

Travelling and conveyance expenses  1,105.99  1,297.50 

Auditors' remuneration

- Statutory audit fees  18.00  15.50 

- Other services  -    1.50 

Security expenses  1,810.62  1,804.20 

Corporate social responsibility  52.84  127.06 

Allowances for expected credit loss  322.42  275.98 

Provision for doubtful advances  45.00  95.11 

Exchange Fluctuation Loss (Net)  0.14  7.70 

Loss on sale / scrap of  Fixed Asset  229.89  -   

Miscellaneous expenses  2,729.93  1,980.74 

 9,940.89  9,297.82 

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. 
The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the Board of Directors.

 Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the 
price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest 
rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. 
Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including loans and borrowings, foreign 
currency receivables and payables.

 The Company manages market risk through treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent 
control over the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management 
objectives and policies, which are approved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of 
this department include management of cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency 
exposures and borrowing strategies.

 Capital Management

 The Company manages its capital to ensure that Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising 
the return to shareholders by striking a balance between debt and equity. The capital structure of the Company 
consists of net debt (total debt offset by cash and bank balances) and equity of the Company (comprising issued 
capital, reserves, retained earnings). The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements 
except financial covenants agreed with lenders.
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 In order to optimise capital allocation, the review of capital employed is done considering the amount of capital 
required to fund capacity expansion, increased working capital commensurate with increase in size of business and 
also fund investments in new ventures which will drive future growth. The Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) reviews 
the capital structure of the Company at regular interval. As part of this review, the CFO considers the cost of capital 
and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Company has a target Debt to Equity Ratio of 1:1 determined 
as the proportion of net debt to equity. The Company had net debt to equity ratio of 0.76x as on March 31, 2020 
(March 31, 2019: 0.17x)

 Interest Rate Risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.

 The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk, as at the respective reporting dates.

 Foreign Currency Risk

 The Company’s exposure to exchange fluctuation risk is insignificant for its purchase from overseas suppliers in 
various foreign currencies.

 The following table analyses foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of:

Trade Payable As at  
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

In USD - 38,079    

` in Lakh - 26.40

Conversion date of USD Not Applicable March 31, 2019

 Foreign exchange risk sensitivity:

 The Company analyses a 10% variation (sensitivity) in the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally 
to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in 
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary 
items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. 

 A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and negative number below indicates a decrease in profit. 
Following is the analysis of change in profit where the Indian Rupee strengthens and weakens by 10% against the 
relevant currency:

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended   

March 31, 2020
Year ended   

March 31, 2019
10% 

strengthen
10% 

weakening
10% 

strengthen
10% 

weakening
USD - - (2.64) 2.64

 In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not representative of the inherent foreign exchange risk 
because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

 Credit Risk

 Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The 
maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from gross trade receivables amounting to 
` 83,260.29 Lakh and ` 35,863.91 Lakh  as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 respectively. Trade receivables are 
typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by 
the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness 
of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption 
of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company 
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uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix 
takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors and the Company’s historical experience for 
customers.

 The Company has significant credit risk exposure on trade receivable from Future Retail Limited 57% (2018-19: 
14%), Future Enterprises Limited 12% (2018-19: 6%) and Future Lifestyle Fashion Limited 7% (2018-19: 12%)

 The average credit period on sale of services is 30 to 90 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.

 Credit Risk Exposure

 Movement in expected credit loss :

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Beginning of the year 881.72 745.24

Movement in expected credit loss (Net) 851.19 136.48

Balances at the end 1,732.91 881.72

 Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and 
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

 Liquidity Risk

 The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated 
from operations. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. 
Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

 The Company had a working capital of ` 46,452.80 Lakh (2018-19: ` 14,593.40 Lakh) including cash and cash 
equivalent of ` 31.10 Lakh (2018-19: ` 11,708.55 Lakh) and current investment of ` Nil (2018-19: ` 0.70 Lakh) 

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR:

 Disputed Service tax demand ` Nil (2018-19: ` 391.80 Lakh)

30. ESTIMATED AMOUNTS OF CONTRACTS REMAINING TO BE EXECUTED ON CAPITAL ACCOUNT: 

 ` 1,084.81 Lakh (net of advances) (2018-19: ` 3,755.18 Lakh)

31. THE INFORMATION AS REQUIRED TO BE DISCLOSED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES 
DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 HAS BEEN DETERMINED TO THE EXTENT SUCH PARTIES HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED 
BASED ON INFORMATION AVAILABLE WITH THE COMPANY.

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 
remaining unpaid as at period end

315.78 166.83

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 
unpaid as at period end

4.43 2.86

Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
each accounting year;

- -
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(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006;

- -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year

4.43 2.86

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

                             - -

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

Names of Related  Parties and nature of relationship
Holding / Ultimate holding company - Future Enterprises Limited (till December 16, 2019)
Holding company - Ritvika Trading Private Limited (till December 16, 2019)
Subsidiary company - Vulcan Express Private Limited (till December 12, 2019)

Leanbox Logistics Solutions Private Limited (from May 20, 2019 to 
June 27, 2019)

Associate company - Leanbox Logistics Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f June 28, 2019)        
Fellow subsidiary - Work Store Limited (till December 16, 2019)
Group Entities:
- Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited
- Future Consumer Limited
- Future Retail Limited
- Future Ideas Company Limited
- Praxis Home Retail Limited
- Galaxy Entertainment Corporation Limited
- Future Speciality Retail Limited
- Future Stylelab Limited
- Rachika Trading Limited
- Aadhar Wholesale and Distribution Limited
- Future Generali India Life In surance Company Limited
- Apollo Design Apparel Park Limited
- Goldmohur Design and Apparel Park Limited
- Nufuture Digital (India) Limited
- Shree Balaji Ethnicity Retail Limited
- Clarks Future Footware Private Limited
- Future Corporate Resources Private Limited 
- Integrated Foodpark Private Limited
- Sublime Foods Private Limited
- The Nilgiris Dairy Farm  Private Limited
- Hain Future Natural Products Private Limited
- Indus Tree Crafts Private Limited
- Turtle Limited
- Travel News Service (India) Private Limited
- Future Market Network Limited
- Retail Light Techniques India Limited
- Future 7-India Convenience Limited
- Work Store Limited (w.e.f. December 17, 2019)
- Future Enterprises Limited (w.e.f. December 17, 2019)
Key Management Personnel
- Mayur Toshniwal (Managing Director)
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During the year, following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business

(` in Lakh)
Nature of Transactions Ultimate holding 

company
Subsidiary 
company

Associate
Company

Fellow 
subsidiary

Group 
entities

Key 
Management 

Personnel
Purchase of fixed assets -

(-)
-

(-)
37.09

(-)
-

(-)
1,854.73

(4,383.32)
-

(-)
Sale of fixed assets -

(-)
-

(-)
0.31

(-)
-

(-)
4.41

(-)
-

(-)
Income from operation 926.29

(2,397.39)
-

(-)
436.76
(78.07)

48.28
 (74.02)

84,866.44
(74,544.62)

-
(-)

Interest income -
(-)

-
(-)

11.91
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

Reimbursement of expenses 23.65
(136.42)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

132.23
(233.68)

-
(-)

Expenses -
(-)

-
(-)

31.23
(-)

84.27
 (113.38)

1,080.03
(1,049.81)

-
(-)

Remuneration -
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

205.17
 (248.87)

Purchase of Investment -
(-)

-
(-)

942.44
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

Inter corporate deposit -
(-)

-
(-)

-
(50.00)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

Advance given -
(-)

-
(397.27)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

As at March 31, 2020
Receivables -

(2,298.01)
-

(-)
849.50
(12.88)

-
(30.27)

71,697.69
(16,339.70)

-
(-)

Payables -
(17.78)

-
(-)

92.58
(-)

-
(67.48)

1,539.68
(1,076.06)

-
(-)

Inter corporate deposit 
receivables

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
 (50.00)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

Deposit payable -
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

Advance -
(-)

-
(397.27)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

-
(-)

Break up of  Material Related Party Transactions.

a)  Purchase of fixed assets includes Future Retail Limited ` 1,846.20 Lakh (2018-19: ` 4,382.49 Lakh)  

b)  Sale of fixed assets includes Future Consumer Limited ` 4.41 Lakh (2018-19: ` Nil)  

c)  Income from operation includes Future Retail Limited ` 59,181.10 Lakh (2018-19: ` 58,410.87 Lakh)

d)  Reimbursement of expenses includes Future Consumer Limited ̀  5.26 Lakh (2018-19: ̀  43.16 Lakh), Future Corporate 
Resources Limited ` 25.40 Lakh (2018-19: ` 27.51 Lakh), Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited Lakh ` 12.95 Lakh (2018-
19: ` 62.96 Lakh), Future Retail Limited ` 59.55 Lakh (2018-19: ` 83.48 Lakh) and Praxis Home Retail Limited `16.46 
Lakh (2018-19: ` 8.2 Lakh)
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e)  Expenses includes Future Corporate Resources Private Limited ` 180 Lakh (2018-19: ` 180 Lakh), Future Generali 
India Life Insurance Company Limited ` 263.54 Lakh (2018-19: ` 153.11 Lakh), Integrated Foodpark Private Limited 
` Nil (2018-19: ` 236.50 Lakh) and Nufuture Digital (India) Limited ` 505.48 Lakh (2018-19: ` 401.13 Lakh)

f)  Receivables includes Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited ` 5,964.77 Lakh (2018-19: ` 4,469.85 Lakh), Future Retail 
Limited ` 47,124.92 Lakh (2018-19: ` 4,945.38 Lakh), Future Enterprises Limited ` 9,844.09 Lakh (2018-19: Nil)  and 
Praxis Home Retail Limited ` 4,270.92 Lakh (2018-19: ` 4,217.13 Lakh)

g)   Payables includes Future Retail Limited ` Nil (2018-19: ` 17.63 Lakh) , Future Corporate Resources Private Limited 
`1,120.82 Lakh (2018-19: ` 920.99 Lakh), Integrated Foodpark Private Limited ` Nil (2018-19: ` 25.68 Lakh) and 
Nufuture Digital (India) Limited  ` 344.41 Lakh (2018-19 ` 140.96 Lakh) 

33. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

(i) Details of the employee share based plan of the Group:        

a) The ESOP titled as Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2017 (“FSC ESOP 2017”) 
was approved by the Board on August 5, 2017 and by the Shareholders on August 8, 2017. The same was also 
ratified by the Shareholders in terms of Regulation 12(3) of SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014 at the annual general meeting held on August 22, 2018. In aggregate, 4,00,000 options were covered under 
the FSC ESOP 2017 for 4,00,000 equity shares of ` 10 each. 

 During the year 2017-18, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company granted 2,83,763 
options under the FSC ESOP 2017 to certain directors and employees of the Company. The options granted are 
convertible into equal number of equity shares. The exercise price of each option is ` 350/-(including ` 340 as share 
premium). 

 During the year 2019-20, the NRC granted 50,000 options and 10,000 options under the FSC ESOP 2017 to employees 
of the Company on May 13, 2019 and July 31, 2019 respectively. The options granted are convertible into equal 
number of equity shares. The exercise price of each option is ` 457/-(including a premium of ` 447). 

 The options granted shall vest over a period of 3 years from the date of the grant in the manner specified in the 
resolution passed by the NRC while granting the options. Accordingly, such options may be exercised within 3 
years from date of vesting.

b)  The following share-based payment arrangements were in existence during the year:

Option scheme Number of 
Options Granted

Grant date Expiry date Exercise 
price (`)

Fair value at 
grant date (`)

FSC ESOP 2017 2,83,763 November 14, 2017 Note-1 below 350.00 599.00

FSC ESOP 2017 50,000 May 13, 2019 Note-1 below 457.00 606.80

FSC ESOP 2017 10,000 July 31, 2019 Note-1 below 457.00 526.10

 Note-1   The options granted shall vest over a period of 3 years from the date of the grant in the manner specified 
in the resolution passed by the NRC while granting the options. Accordingly, these options may be exercised within 
3 years from date of vesting.

(ii) Options were priced using a Black Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatility is based on the historical 
share price volatility over the past 1 year:

Inputs FSC ESOP 2017 FSC ESOP 2017 FSC ESOP 2017

Grant date November 14, 2017 May 13, 2019 July 31, 2019

Expected volatility (%) 25.26% 23.59% 25.09%

Option life (Years) 2.50-4.50 2.50-4.50 2.50-4.50

Dividend yield (%) - 0.21% 0.24%

Risk-free interest rate (Average) 6.75% - 7.01% 6.82% - 7.09% 6.11% - 6.27%
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(iii) Movement in share options during the year

 The following reconciles the share options outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
(`)

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
(`)

Balance at beginning of year 2,39,200 350 2,69,700 350
Granted during the year 60,000 457 - -
Exercised during the year 13,135 350 24,875 350
Cancelled during the year 47,500 372.53 5,625 350
Balance at end of year 238,565 372.43 239,200 350

(iv) Share options exercised during the year

 The following options were exercised during the year:

Options scheme Number exercised Exercise date Share price at 
exercise date (`)

FSC ESOP 2017 5,020 May 13, 2019 606.80
FSC ESOP 2017 1,015 June 18, 2019 589.20
FSC ESOP 2017 800 July 31, 2019 526.10
FSC ESOP 2017 6,300 December 17, 2019 488.80

(v) Share options outstanding at the end of the year

 The share options outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average remaining contractual life of  1,220 
days (2018-19: 1,483 days).

 Out of the ESOPs outstanding, the number of options exerciseable are as under :

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

FSC ESOP 2017 87,838     27,940     

(vi) The expenses recognised for employee services received during the year is shown is the following table:

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2020
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
Expenses arising from equity settled share based payment transactions 113.44 371.80

34. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Basic earnings per share

From continuing operations (`) (15.51) 24.06

From discontinued operations (`) - (7.79)

Total basic earnings per share (`) (15.51) 16.27

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)



130

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Diluted earnings per share

From continuing operations (`) (15.51) 24.03

From discontinued operations (`) - (7.79)

Total diluted earnings per share (`) (15.51) 16.24

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing operations (` in Lakh) (6,388.24) 9,638.08

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the  year for 
Basic EPS

411,86,178 4,00,59,473

Add: Weighted Average number of equity shares on account of Employee 
Stock Options outstanding

- 57,042

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year  for  
Diluted EPS

411,86,178 4,01,16,515

Earnings per share of ` 10/- each from continuing operations

 - Basic (in `) (15.51) 24.06

 - Diluted (in `) (15.51) 24.03

35. LEASE 

 The Company has entered into lease arrangements for its warehouses, office premises etc. 

 These leasing arrangements which are non-cancellable range between 3 months and 12 years generally or longer 
and are usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

 Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts 
existing on  April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustments to 
retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company has recorded the lease liability at 
the present value of the lease payments discounted at the  incremental borrowing rate  and the right of use asset 
at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since commencement date of the lease, but discounted 
at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of intial application. Comparitives as at and for the year 
ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will contine to be reported under 
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for the year ended March 31, 2019.

 On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of use’ asset of ` 27,801.99 Lakh 
and a lease liability of ` 31,721.55 Lakh. The cumulative effect of appyling the standard, amounting to ` 3,919.54 
Lakh was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes. The  effect of this adoption is insignificant on profit before 
tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will result in increase in cash inflows from operating 
activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activites on account of lease payments.

 The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1.  Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a 
similar end date.

2.  Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of 
lease term on the date of initial application

3.  Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

NOTES 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)



131

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATUTORY REPORTSCORPORATE OVERVIEW

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind 
AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

 The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31,2019  under Ind AS 17 disclosed under note 
no 35 of annual standalone financial statements forming part of 2019 Annual report and value of lease liability as 
of April 1,2019 is primarily on account of inclusion of extention and termination options resonably certain to be 
exercised, in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting lease liabilities to the 
present value under Ind AS 116.

 The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 10.15%

 The following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year  ended March 31,2020:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Balance as on April 1,2019   27,801.99

 Addition 17,687.63

Deletion (3,102.51)

Depreciation (10,164.34)

Balance as on March 31,2020 32,222.77

 The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

 The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Non-current lease liabilities   25,979.59

Current lease liabilities 10,472.98

Total 36,452.57

 The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning   31,721.54

Addition 17,412.03

Deletion (3,102.51)

Finance cost accrued during the period 3,178.25

Gain on termination of lease asset (10.04)

Payment of lease liabilities (12,746.70)

Total 36,452.57

 The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regards to its lease Liabilities as the current assets are 
sufficient to meet obligations to lease liabiliites as and when they fall due.

 Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was ` 1,687.10 Lakh for the year ended March 31, 2020.
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 Reconciliation for the effects of the transition on Statement of Profit and loss for year ended March 31, 2020 as 
follows:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended March 
31, 2020

Comparable basis

Changes due to Ind-
AS 116

Increase / (decrease)

Year ended March 31, 
2020 as reported

Cost of logistics services 82,767.16 (12,803.69) 69,963.47

Other expenses 10,178.70 (237.81) 9,940.89

Depreciation and amortisation expense 6,429.25 10,164.34 16,593.59

Finance costs 4,902.79 3,178.25 8,081.04

Gain on termination of lease asset                         -   (10.04) (10.04)

Profit before exceptional item and tax 2,983.24 (291.05) 2,692.19

36. SECURITY CLAUSE IN RESPECT TO SECURED BORROWINGS

A. Short Term Borrowing

 Short term borrowings of ` 8,511.06 Lakh (2018-19: ` Nil) is secured by (a) first pari-passu charge on current assets 
of the Company (b) second pari-passu charge on fixed assets (c) secured by personal guarantee of a director.

B.     Long Term Borrowing

 During the previous year ended March 31,2019, the Company has issued and allotted 19,900 Secured, Rated, 
Redeemable and Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of ` 1 Lakh  each aggregating  to ` 19,900 Lakh on private 
placement basis. The NCDs have been listed on Wholesale Debt Market segment of BSE Limited. The NCDs are 
secured by maintaining an overall minimum asset cover / security cover of 1.25  times on net block of fixed assets 
on first pari passu basis on the outstanding amount. The NCDs were issued in Series I and Series II of  ` 9,900 Lakh 
and ` 10,000 Lakh respectively with tenure of 3 and 4 years from date of allotment respectively. The NCDs carry 
interest @10.15% payable annnually and on redemption. The redemption date for Series 1 & Series 2 is September 
26, 2021 and September 26, 2022 respectively. Amount repayable includes principal sum of ` 9,900 Lakh in 2021-22 
and ` 10,000 Lakh in 2022-23 along with interest payment ` 2,020 Lakh in 2019-20,  ` 2,020 Lakh in 2020-21, ` 2,020 
Lakh in 2021-22 and ` 1,015 Lakh in 2022-23.    

 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has taken a term loan of ` 3,784 lakh from Yes Bank Limited 
(2018-19: ̀  1,216 lakh). The same is secured by way of first pari-passu charge on entire fixed assets (excluding land) 
and second pari-passu charge on current assets and personal undertaking of Kishore Biyani. Amount repayable is ̀  

1,250 Lakh each in 2020-21, 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24. Rate of interest is 0.55% over and above 6 month MCLR 
and will be reset semi-annually and every half year thereafter. Interest shall be paid monthly.

 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has taken a term loan of ` 22,500 lakh from IDFC First Bank 
Limited. The same is secured by way of First pari-passu charge over fixed assets, second pari-passu charge over 
current assets and personal undertaking of Kishore Biyani. Amount repayable is ` 11,199.64 Lakh in 2020-21, ` 
7,500 Lakh in 2021-22 and ` 3,750 Lakh in 2022-23 (Amount repaid is ` 50.36 Lakh in FY 19-20). Rate of interest is 
12% pa. Interest shall be paid monthly.
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37. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

 Defined Contribution Plan

 Amount recognised as an expenses and included in Schedule 25 under the “Contribution to Provident and Other 
Funds” of Statement of  Profit and Loss ` 441.59 Lakh  (2018-19: ` 282.02 Lakh).

 Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity

 The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is the greater of the 
amount calculated as per the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee. 
The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employee 
on retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity benefit payable to the employees are based on the 
employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not contribute towards this plan 
and the full cost of providing these benefit are met by the Company. In case of death while in service, the gratuity 
is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company’s obligation towards Gratuity is a Defined Benefit plan and is not 
funded.

 The plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

 Interest risk 

 A decrease in the Government bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

 Longevity Risk

 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of 
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants 
will increase the plan’s liability.

 Salary risk

 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan 
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

 The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
were carried out at March 31, 2020 by M/s. KP Actuaries and Consultants. The present value of the defined benefit 
obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit 
method.

 As per Ind AS 19, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) Leave Encashment 

As at

March 31, 
2020

As at

March 31, 
2019

As at

March 31, 
2020

As at

March 31, 
2019

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 268.26 238.69 156.14 126.77

Current service cost 82.99 58.39 57.79 51.90

Interest cost 20.70 18.60 12.05 9.88

Remeasurement-Actuarial (gain) / loss 127.13 (7.86) 70.53 6.80

Benefits paid by Company (67.82) (39.56) (61.00) (39.21)

Present value of obligation at  the end of the  year 431.26 268.26 235.51 156.14
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 Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded)

As at

March 31, 2020

As at

March 31, 2019

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 3.45                        3.20
Investment Income 0.27 0.25
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 3.72 3.45

 Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Assets) 

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Defined Benefit Obligation 431.26 268.26
Fair value of plan assets (3.72) (3.45)
Surplus / (Deficit) 427.54 264.81
Net defined benefit liability / (assets) 427.54 264.81

 Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) Leave Encashment 

Year ended  
March 31, 

2020

Year ended 
March 31, 

2019

Year ended  
March 31, 

2020

Year ended 
March 31, 

2019
Current service cost 82.99 58.39 57.79 51.90
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability / asset 20.44 18.36 12.05 9.88
Remeasurement on (gain) / loss - - 70.53 6.80
Total expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 103.43 76.75 140.37 68.58

 Re-measurement Effects recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended   

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019

Actuarial (gains) / loss 127.13 (7.86)
Total (gain) / loss included in OCI 127.13 (7.86)

 Financial Assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

As at

March 31, 
2020

As at

March 31, 
2019

As at

March 31, 
2020

As at

March 31, 
2019

Discounted rate (per annum) 6.8% 7.70% 6.8% 7.70%

Expected rate of future salary increase 5% 5% 5% 5%

Mortality rate (% of IALM 06-08) 100% 100% 100% 100%

Withdrawal rate (per annum) 1% 1% 1% 1%

Normal  retirement age 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years 
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 Sensitivity analysis :  Gratuity

 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected 
salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible 
change of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions 
constant. The results of sensitivity is given below :                    (` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 499.86 374.59 306.61 236.11
Salary Growth rate (- / + 1%) 373.20 500.43 235.79 306.52
Attrition rate (- / +  50% of attrition rates) 426.94 435.20 264.30 271.92
Mortality rate  (- / +  10% of mortality rates) 430.94 431.58 267.94 268.57

 Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representive of the actual change in the 
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another 
as some of the assumption may be correlated.

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 All categories of financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

39. BUSINESS  COMBINATION

 During the previous year ended March 31,2019, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved a Scheme 
of Arrangement under section 230-232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”) between 
the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary Vulcan Express Private Limited (“Vulcan”) and their respective 
Shareholders and Creditors. The Scheme received all the requisite approvals and has been given effect to in the 
books with effect from the appointed date mentioned in the Scheme. The Scheme became effective on December 
14, 2018.

 The Scheme envisages demerger of “Fulfilment Business Undertaking” and “Last Mile Delivery Business 
Undertaking” of Vulcan and vest into the Company on October 1, 2016 on a going concern basis. In view of Vulcan 
being the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, no consideration was proposed to be paid for the arrangements 
embodied in the Scheme. 

 Assets acquired and liabilities recognised on the appointed date under pooling of interest method:

Particulars ` in Lakh
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents   523.82
Trade and other receivables 2,914.24
Other current assets 1,410.45
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5,565.03
Capital work in progress 1,221.12
Intangible assets      132.61
Other non-current assets    809.64
Current liabilities
Borrowings 9,140.00
Trade and other payables 5,247.96
Other current liabilities and provisions 713.15
Non-current liabilities
Other non current liabilities     64.98
Other equity (2,589.18)
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40. SALE OF LAST MILE DELIVERY BUSINESS ON SLUMP SALE BASIS

 The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on February 7, 2019, approved the sale of Last Mile 
Delivery Business (“Division”) of the Company on a Slump Sale basis to Leanbox Logistics Solutions Private 
Limited (“Leanbox”), an Associate company. The Company has executed requisite agreement on May 20, 2019 
with respect to transfer of business undertaking (“Delivery Business”) to Leanbox Logistics Solutions Private 
Limited (“Leanbox”). The Company has been issued 4,71,235 equity shares @ ` 200 per equity share in Leanbox 
on May 20, 2019. After such allotment to the Company, the shareholding of the Company increased to 77.15% 
of total paid share capital of the Company on fully diluted basis and hence Leanbox became subsidiary of the 
Company. Howewer consequent to issue and allotment of new equity share by Leanbox to Future Enterprises 
Limited (ultimate holding company) on June 28, 2019, shareholding of the Company in leanbox has reduced and 
accordingly, Leanbox has ceased to be subsidiary of the Company w.e.f  June 28, 2019.

41. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

 During the year ended, the Company divested its entire stake in Vulcan Express Private Limited. The resultant loss 
of ` 5,311.26 Lakh has been shown as an exceptional item in the financial results. Exceptional item for the quarter 
and year ended March 31, 2020 includes impairment loss of ` 1,942.44 Lakh on investment in associate, write off of 
Loan & advances of ̀   572.90 Lakh and Expected Credit Loss on trade and other receivables amounting to ̀  1,253.83 
Lakh.

42. The current tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended   

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019

Profit / (Loss) before tax from continuing operations (6,388.24) 9,638.08
(Loss) before tax from discontinued operations - (3,122.36)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (6,388.24) 6,515.72
Income tax expenses - 2,276.85
Effect of allowance to the extent of income tax expenses - (2,276.85)
Current tax expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss - -

43. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 17, 2019 had approved issue of 
37,89,350 equity share @ ` 664/- per equity share (including premium of ` 654/- per equity share) aggregating 
to ` 251,61,28,400/- on preferential basis to Nippon Express (South Asia & Oceania) Pte. Ltd., a foreign company 
incorporated under the laws of Singapore, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter V of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (the “ICDR Regulations”), 
the Companies act, 2013 including applicable rules made thereunder (the “Act”). There was execution of share 
subscription agreement and shareholder’s agreement and article of association was altered to reflect relative 
terms and condition of the shareholder’s agreement subject to requisite approvals including shareholders of the 
Company. Subsequently Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 17, 2019 approved 
an allotment of 37,89,350 equity share of `10 each as full paid  on preferential basis at a price of ` 664 per equity 
shares (including premium of ` 654 per equity share).

44. During the year, the Company has filed application under SABKA VISHWAS (LEGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTION) 
SCHEME, 2019 (SVLDRS) under Amnesty scheme for resolution of its disputed service tax liability of `391.80 Lakh. 
The Company has made payment of `195.90 Lakh and got discharge certificate under said scheme

45. The Company is engaged only in Logistics services in India and there are no separate reportable business and 
geographical segments under Ind AS 108 relating to operating segments. 
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46. As required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 the 
Company has an outstanding loan amount of ` Nil (2018-19: ` 50.00 Lakh). Maximum Loan amount outstanding is 
` 572.90 Lakh (2018-19: ` 50.00 Lakh).

47. The Outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic in India and globally followed by a nationwide lockdown 
announced on March 24, 2020 impacted business. This caused significant disruption and slowdown of economic 
activities throughout the country, including that of FSC. Although specific relaxations in lockdown was granted by 
the Government, the level of economic activity in the country continues to remain curtailed.

Since the lockdown has started from last week of March 2020, it had a limited impact on operations of the Company 
for 2019-20. However, due to repeated extensions of the lockdown and in view of restrictions imposed thereunder, 
the sales performance of the Company subsequent to March 2020 has been adversely impacted. The Company 
is also engaged in the supply chain of essential commodities and hence, was permitted to carry on logistics and 
supply chain activities of essential commodities during the lockdown period with a view to support the availability 
of the essential commodities to the general public. However, it faced several issues due to severe transport 
restrictions, unavailability of labour etc., which adversely impacted operations across warehouses, branches and 
administrative offices. 

Further, during the lockdown period, most of the warehouses and branches remained closed for operations, 
thereby impacting the sales performance post March 2020. 

In finalising these financial statements, the Company has considered various internal and external sources of 
information and indicators of economic forecasts, including the impact of COVID-19 while assessing the carrying 
amounts of current and non-current assets and its repayment obligations on a timely basis up to the date of 
approval of these financial statements. However, the impact of the pandemic and other events may be different 
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will continue to 
closely monitor any material changes, due to future economic conditions.

48. CORPORATE SOCIAL  RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

  As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by Company.The proposed area 
of CSR activiites are taking measures for reducing inequality faced by socially and economically backward groups.
The expenditure incurred duting the year on this activities are specified in Schedule VII on the Companies Act, 2013

 (a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: ` 52.84 Lakh

 (b) Amount spent during the year : Nil

49. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

 The Financial Statements were approved  by the Audit Committee and the  Board of Directors at their respective 
meetings held on  July 31, 2020.

As per our report of even date attached
For GMJ & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Firm Registration No: 103429W

Atul Jain Mayur Toshniwal C P Toshniwal
Partner (Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No.: 037097 DIN : 01655776 DIN : 00036303

Place: Mumbai Samir Kedia Vimal Dhruve
Date : July 31, 2020 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) on Standalone Audited Financial 
Results for the year ended March 31, 2020

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020

[See Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016] 

(` in Lakh)

I Sl. 
No.

Particulars Audited 
Figures (as 

reported before 
adjusting for 

qualifications) 

Adjusted 
Figures (audited 

figures after 
adjusting for 

qualifications) 

I 1 Turnover / Total income 1,16,058.17 1,16,058.17

2 Total Expenditure 1,13,365.98 1,13,365.98

3 Net Profit/(Loss) (6,388.24) (6,388.24)

4 Earnings Per Share (`) (15.51) (15.51)

5 Total Assets 2,04,939.26 2,04,939.26

6 Total Liabilities 1,30,622.81 1,30,622.81

7 Net Worth 74,316.45 74,316.45

8 Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate by the 
management)

None None

II Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately): 

a. Details of Audit Qualification: Refer to Exhibit A 

b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion 

c. Frequency of qualification: appeared first time 

d. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management’s Views: Not 
applicable 

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor: Refer Exhibit A

(i) Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification: 

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: 

(iii) Auditors’ Comments on (i) or (ii) above: 

III Signatories:

Managing Director

Sd/-
CFO

Audit Committee Chairpeerson

Statutory Auditors

Place: Mumbai

Date: July 31, 2020
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Exhibit A to the Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) on Standalone 
Audited Financial Results for the year ended March 31, 2020

Sr 
No.

Audit Qualification Management response Auditors remarks/ 
comment 

1 Total trade receivables amounting to  
` 83,260.29 lakh includes related party 
receivables amounting to ` 72,547.19 
lakh as at March 31, 2020. During the 
year based on internal evaluation, 
the management has provided for 
additional loss allowance amounting 
to ` 1,576.24 lakh. There have been 
substantial delays in receipt from 
customers and subsequent receipts 
have not been significant. In view of 
the above, we are unable to obtain 
sufficient and appropriate audit 
evidence and are unable to comment 
on the adequacy of loss provision, 
valuation and recoverability of 
balance outstanding amounting to  
` 81,527.38 lakh (net of provision).

The spread of COVID-19 disease has severely 
impacted economies and businesses in India. 
The spread of COVID-19 and the consequent 
lock-downs, disruptions in transportation 
and supply chains, travel bans, quarantines, 
social distancing and other such emergency 
measures have caused widespread 
disruptions in the economy and businesses. 
Business volumes started to decline since the 
beginning of the last quarter of the financial 
year under report. Many of our customers 
took precautionary measures in terms 
of payments, which has led to a sharper 
increase in our trade receivable days.

The Company expects the receivables to be 
realised in full as normal business operations 
starts post the pandemic. The Company has 
also additional security of inventories of 
debtors lying in its warehouse to recover the 
outstanding.

Impact cannot be 
ascertained for non-
recoverable balances 
as on the date of 
signing of this report.

2 During the year, the Company 
has raised term loan from a bank 
amounting to ` 22,500 lakh which 
has not been utilised for the purpose 
for which it was sanctioned and 
consequently used in the normal 
course of business. In the absence of 
any clarity on non-compliance with 
the terms and conditions of sanction 
as well as breach of covenants, 
we are unable to comment on the 
impact of aforesaid utilisation and 
non-compliances on the financial 
statements.

The term loan raised has been initially 
utilized as per the terms of the arrangement. 
Subsequently, expansion plans of the 
Company have been temporarily kept on 
hold on account of slow-down of economy 
and outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic. The orders raised were cancelled 
and advance refunded were subsequently 
utilized in the normal course of business 
because of constraints. The Company plans 
to repay this loan within this financial year.  

Impact cannot be 
ascertained for non-
compliances with 
terms and conditions 
of the loan sanctioned 
by the bank.




